ORDINANCES

OF THE

YUKON TERRITORY

PASSED BY THE

YUKON COUNCIL

IN THE YEAR

1953

FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD SESSIONS

W. G. BROWN COMMISSIONER



Printed and Published for the Government of the Yukon Territory Under Authority of Chapter 75 of the Consolidated Ordinances of 1914.

BY

W. D. ROBERTSON, Queen's Printer

ORDINANCES

OF THE

YUKON TERRITORY

PASSED BY THE

YUKON COUNCIL

IN THE YEAR

1953

FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD SESSIONS

W. G. BROWN COMMISSIONER



Printed and Published for the Government of the Yukon Territory Under Authority of Chapter 75 of the Consolidated Ordinances of 1914.

BY

W. D. ROBERTSON, Queen's Printer

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FIRST SESSION

Cha	p.	Pa
1.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Gasoline and Diesel Oil Tax Ordinance"	
2.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Government Liquor Ordinance"	
3.	An Ordinance to Amend "The Yukon Territorial Public Service Ordinance"	
4.	An Ordinance to Empower the Commissioner to Authorize the Department of National Revenue to Delete from its Accounts Debts Due and Owing from Certain Persons.	
5.	An Ordinance to Amend "The Hospitals Ordinance"	
6.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Municipal Ordinance"	
7.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Motor Vehicles Ordinance"	8
8.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Steam Boilers Ordinance"	11-
9.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Workmen's Compensation Ordinance"	13-
10.	An Ordinance to Amend "The Yukon Game Ordinance"	16-
11.	An Ordinance to Amend "An Ordinance Empowering the Commissioner of the Yukon Territory to Grant a Franchise to Mayo Utilities Limited for the Operating of a Telephone System in the Mayo Area, Y.T."	,
12.	An Ordinance to Amend "An Ordinance Granting Permission to the Yukon Brewery (Holding) Company Limited to Manufacture, Compound and Make Intoxicating Liquors"	
13.	An Ordinance to Ratify the Tax Rental Agreement Between the Government of Canada and the Government of the Yukon Territory	
14.	An Ordinance to Incorporate The Children's Aid Society of Southern Yukon	23-
15.	An Ordinance for Granting to the Commissioner Certain Sums of Money to Defray the Expenses of the Public Service of the Territory	25-
	SECOND SESSION	- U-
1.	An Ordinance to Aniend the "Municipal Ordinance"	
2.	An Ordinance for Granting to the Commissioner Certain Sums of Money to Defray the Expenses of the Public Service of the Territory	26
	THIRD SESSION	36-
1	An Ordinance to Amend the "Motor Vehicles Ordinance"	41-
1. 2.	An Ordinance to Amend the "Workmen's Compensation Ordinance"	41-
3.	An Ordinance to Amend the Municipal Ordinance	
4.	An Ordinance for Granting to the Commissioner Certain Sums of Money to Defray the Expenses of	
	the Public Service of the Territory	45-

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "GASOLINE AND DIESEL OIL TAX ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- 1. Section fifteen of the "Gasoline and Diesel Oil Tax Ordinance" being chapter three of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1949 (second session), as enacted by Chapter three of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1950 (second session), is hereby amended by inserting immediately after paragraph (c) the following paragraph:
 - "(d) Service vehicles or other equipment of a visiting Visiting Forces force as defined in the Visiting Forces (North At-Vehicles lantic Treaty) Act of Canada."
- 2. This Ordinance shall be deemed to have come into effect Coming into on the first day of January, A.D. 1953.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "GOVERNMENT LIQUOR ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

Subsection 1 (a) Section 25 Repealed 1. Subsection one (a) of section twenty-five of the "Government Liquor Ordinance" being chapter fourteen of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), as enacted by chapter two of the said Ordinances, 1952 (second session), is hereby repealed.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND "THE YUKON TERRITORIAL PUBLIC SERVICE ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

1. (1) Section thirty-eight of "The Yukon Territorial Pub- Section 38 lic Service Ordinance", being chapter seventy-six of the Consolidated Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1914, as amended by chapter one of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is hereby amended by striking out the words "subject to such additional compensation as the Commissioner may authorize".

- (2) Section thirty-eight is further amended by adding thereto the following subsection:
 - The Commissioner shall have the power to Commissioner make regulations regarding overtime work regulations regarding of Territorial Government employees, and overtime payment of additional compensation therefor."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO EMPOWER THE COMMISSIONER
TO AUTHORIZE THE DEPARTMENT OF NATIONAL
REVENUE TO DELETE FROM ITS ACCOUNTS DEBTS
DUE AND OWING FROM CERTAIN PERSONS

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

List of debtors

1. The Commissioner is hereby empowered to authorize the Department of National Revenue to delete from its accounts debts owing to the Government of the Yukon Territory incurred under and by virtue of "The Income Tax Ordinance, 1940", being chapter seven of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1940, by the following persons and in the following amounts:

Alexander Davies, Champagne, Y.T	\$ 6.70
Frank Fairclough, Dawson, Y.T	2.12
Edward Featherstone, Dawson, Y.T	14.65
Allan Cameron Fraser, Dawson, Y.T	1.42
Edward Garvey, Dawson, Y.T.	3.64
Jean T. Grenier, Dawson, Y.T.	21.52
Charles E. Harper, Dawson, Y.T.	.59
Stephen Howorth, Dawson, Y.T.	4.50
Albin C. Swanson, Dawson, Y.T.	.60
Ronald A. Upward, Dawson, Y.T	7 .15
Dan Vinac, Dawson, Y.T.	4.35
Herbert E. Worms, Dawson, Y.T.	5.31
Total Amount	\$72.55

Total Amount\$72.55

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY

1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND "THE HOSPITALS ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory. enacts as follows:

- 1. Section four of "The Hospitals Ordinance" being chapter forty-three of the Consolidated Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1914, as amended by chapter four of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - (1) Subject to subsection two, out of the monies Grants to Hospitals "4. appropriated by the Commissioner in Council for the purpose of this Ordinance in any fiscal year, there may be paid by the Commissioner in that fiscal year to every hospital complying with the provisions of this Ordinance and all orders made by the Commissioner hereunder the following:

- (a) Not more than two dollars for each day's actual treatment and stay therein of each patient.
- (b) In addition to the amount provided under (a) not more than five dollars for each day's actual treatment and stay of each free bed patient, and not more than three dollars for each day's actual treatment and stay for every free ambulant patient.

- (c) In addition to the amount provided under (a) not more than five dollars for each day's actual treatment and stay of every partially free patient during the calendar year for which said aid is granted, less the number of days represented by any money's worth received for such treatment from or on behalf of the patient.
- (d) One-half the regular fee charged by the hospital for medicines, x-rays, operating room and similar fees, other than ward fees, for every free patient admitted to or being within the hospital.

Physician's certificate to be filed in certain cases

(2) No aid shall be granted in respect of any partially free patient until there has been filed with the Territorial Treasurer in respect of such patient a certificate of the attending physician that each day of such treatment and stay was necessary, and an application on behalf of the hospital for such aid with evidence which satisfies the Territorial Treasurer that the hospital has made every reasonable effort to collect from such patient the full cost in money's worth of his treatment and stay and stating the reasons why such full cost could not be collected and the amount which was so collected.

Coming into 2. The Ordinance is deemed to have come into force on the first day of April, 1952.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- The "Municipal Ordinance", being chapter eight of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1949 (second session), is hereby amended by inserting immediately after subsection sixty-seven of section one hundred and seventy-two the following subsection:
 - Subject to the assent of a majority of the rate- Franchises "(67A) payers who vote on the ratification of the bylaw entering into a contract with a person or persons undertaking to provide the residents of the municipality with electric light, electric power, natural gas, water and telephone services within the municipality and to outside points, and for the conferring of a special franchise upon that person or persons in respect of the subject matter of the contract for any period not in excess of twenty years with a provision for renewal for further terms of ten vears each."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "MOTOR VEHICLES ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

1. Section twelve of the "Motor Vehicles Ordinance", chapter eight of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), is amended,

Providing for two plates on vehicles

- (a) by deleting the word "plate" where the same appears in subsection one and substituting therefor the word "plates";
- (b) by deleting the word "plate" wherever the same appears in subsection two and substituting therefor the word "plates"; and
- (c) by repealing subsection three and substituting therefor the following:
 - "(3) Every motor vehicle other than motorcycles or pedal bicycles with motor attachment, shall have two number plates firmly affixed to the motor vehicle, one plate at the front of the vehicle and one plate at the rear of the vehicle."
- 2. Section thirteen of the said Ordinance is repealed and the following section is substituted therefor:

Lost or defaced plates "13. If the number plates or one of the number plates of a registered motor vehicle or trailer are lost

or destroyed or are so defaced as to be illegible. the owner shall forthwith apply to the Commissioner, or to a person authorized by the Commissioner, for a re-registration of his motor vehicle or trailer and shall accompany with his application the following:

- (a) the permit issued to him under section ten;
- (b) the remaining or defaced number plate, if any;
- (c) an affidavit showing that the original plates or one of them have been lost or destroyed; and
- (d) payment of a fee of two dollars;

and the Commissioner, or person authorized by him, may re-register the motor vehicle or trailer and issue to the owner a new permit and new number plates."

- Section sixteen of the said Ordinance is hereby amended by adding the following subsections:
 - The Commissioner may issue, without fee, to a In transit markers dealer "In Transit" markers which shall be used only on the original trip of new motor vehicles from the distributor to the dealer.

- (5) An "In Transit" marker shall be pasted on the windshield of the motor vehicle and shall be destroyed immediately upon the arrival of the vehicle at the dealer's place of business.
 - (6) Every dealer shall account to the Commissioner for all "In Transit" markers issued to him."
- The said Ordinance is further amended by inserting immediately after section sixteen the following section:

Visiting forces vehicles exemption

- "16A The provisions of this Ordinance regarding the registration and licensing of motor vehicles shall not apply to the service vehicles of a visiting force as defined by the Visiting Forces (North Atlantic Treaty) Act of Canada nor shall any tax be payable in respect of the use of said vehicles on the roads."
- 5. Section nineteen of the said Ordinance is amended,
 - (a) by deleting the words "Subject to subsections two and three" where they occur in subsection one and substituting therefor the words "Subject to subsections two, three and four", and
 - (b) by adding thereto the following subsection:
 - "(4) Subsection one does not apply to a member of a visiting force as defined in the Visiting Forces (North Atlantic Treaty) Act of Canada, if such member is in possession of a driving permit or license issued to him by such force."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY

1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "STEAM BOILERS ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- Section eight of the "Steam Boilers Ordinance", being Section 8 amended chapter two of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), as enacted by chapter nine of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is amended by striking out the word and letters "B and C" where they appear in the last line of subsection one thereof, and substituting therefor the word and letters "B or C".
- 2. Section twenty of the said Ordinance, as amended by chapter nine of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is further amended by repealing subsection two thereof, and substituting therefor the following subsections:
 - Subject to subsection three the Commissioner, upon Boiler certificate payment of the proper fee as shown in the schedule hereto, shall by certificate designate the class of persons entitled to take charge of a boiler or pressure vessel under this section.

(3) The Commissioner may, upon recommendation of Provisional the Inspector, issue a provisional certificate to any person who has been employed as a fireman on a boiler for not less than one year upon payment of a fee of ten dollars; such provisional certificate to be valid for a period of not less than one year."

3. Section thirty-five of the said Ordinance, as enacted by chapter nine of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is repealed and the following substituted therefor:

Affidavit of manufacturer

"35 (1) Where any boiler is delivered to a purchaser within the Territory, an affidavit of the foreman under whose supervision the boiler was built, fully filled out and detailed in accordance with a form prescribed by the Province or State where the boiler was built, shall be forwarded to the Commissioner. Such form shall show the name and address of the purchaser which may be filled in by the agent making the sale.

Examination of new boilers

(2) The inspector will not be required to examine or finally pass new boilers if the provisions of this Section have been complied with.

Inspection procedure

(3) The same inspection procedure and the same fees used in connection with steam boilers shall be applicable to hot water boilers used for heating purposes and having more than one hundred and fifty square feet of heating surface.

Application of Canadian Boiler regulations

(4) The Canadian Regulations for the Construction and Inspection of Boilers and Pressure Vessels published by the Canadian Standards Association at Ottawa shall govern the design, construction and inspection of boilers and pressure vessels in all respects where not covered by the regulations."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory. enacts as follows:

Paragraph (k) of section two of the "Workmen's Com- Paragraph pensation Ordinance" being chapter twelve of the Ordin(k) section 2
amended ances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is amended by adding immediately at the end thereof the following words:

- "and includes Lloyds of London as registered in the Province of British Columbia."
- (1) Subsection four of section sixteen of the said Ordinance is repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - Subject to subsection five, where an accident Where "(4) happens to a workman in the course of his may bring action employment in such circumstances as entitled him or his legal personal representative or his dependents to an action against some person other than his employer or another workman of his employer, the workman or his legal personal representative or his dependents may bring such action.
 - (2) Section sixteen of the said Ordinance is further amended by repealing subsection seven and substituting therefor the following:

14 WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION ORDINANCE

Payment of Excess to workman by employer

- Any amount received by the employer from such other person in excess of the cost of the accident to the employer shall be paid over to the injured workman or his legal personal representatives or his dependents, as the case may be, upon the employer receiving from such injured workman or his legal personal representative, or his dependents, as the case may be, a release from any further claim upon the employer in respect of the accident for or on account of which payment was or is being received, in which case the workman or his legal personal representatives or his dependents, as the case may be, is not thereafter entitled to receive from or be paid by the employer or the insurer any further compensation or medical aid for or in respect of injury or death arising out of such accident."
- 3. Section forty-two of the said Ordinance is repealed and the following substituted therefor:

Employer assessment

- "42 (1) Each employer who is not exempt from the operation of subsection one of section three shall pay to the Commissioner or such other person as the Commissioner may designate at the time the employer pays the premium on any insurance policy entered into by him pursuant to this Ordinance, an assessment of such percentage of his estimated payroll for the current calendar year not exceeding one-half of one per cent. of such payroll as the Commissioner may from time to time designate by regulation.
 - (2) If the assessment paid by an employer under subsection one is greater or less than the amount that he would have paid had the assessment been made on his actual payroll for the calendar year, he is, if he has paid more, entitled to a refund or credit of the amount of the assessment on his actual payroll, or, if he has paid less, he shall pay to the

Commissioner the amount of such difference immediately after he ceases to be an employer under this Ordinance, or upon the termination of such year, whichever is the sooner.

- (3) Each employer exempted from the application of subsection one of section three shall pay to the Commissioner at the time the exemption is granted an assessment in an amount equivalent to such percentage of his estimated payroll for the current calendar year not exceeding one-quarter of one per cent, of such payroll as the Commissioner may designate by regulation.
- (4) If the assessment paid by an employer under subsection three is greater or less than the amount he would have paid had the assessment been made on his actual payroll for the current calendar year, he is, if he has paid more, entitled to a refund or credit of the amount of the difference between the amount paid and the amount of the assessment on his actual payroll, or, if he has paid less, he shall pay to the Commissioner the amount of such difference immediately after he ceases to be exempt from subsection one of section three, or upon the termination of such year, whichever is the sooner.
- (5) From and out of the Yukon Consolidated Payments Revenue Fund, there may be paid the referee's consolidated fees and expenses, the sum to which an em- Fund ployer is entitled to be refunded under this section and such other costs incidental to the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND "THE YUKON GAME ORDINANCE"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:—

Section 2 amended

- 1. "The Yukon Game Ordinance" being chapter eleven of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1951 (second session), is amended by striking out the words "and Publicity" where the same appear in paragraph (d) of section two thereof.
- Subsection 2 section 4 amended

2.

(1) Paragraph (a) of subsection two of section four of the said Ordinance is amended by adding to the words "no open season throughout year" the following words:

"subject to subsection four".

(2) Section four is further amended by adding thereto the following subsection:

Polar bear hunting season

"(4) Notwithstanding anything herein contained, Eskimos may hunt polar bear from the 1st day of October until the 31st day of May next following, both dates inclusive."

Hunting and trapping permits

- 3. Section five of the said Ordinance is hereby repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - "5. No person shall engage in hunting or trapping any game permitted to be taken under section four of this Ordinance unless he is the holder of a valid

and subsisting license or permit issued pursuant to this Ordinance, bearing his signature or duly witnessed mark on the face thereof, and no person shall be entitled to register a trapline unless trapping is one of his main occupations."

4. Section six of the said Ordinance is amended by adding Exemption thereto the following after paragraph (k):

- "(1) Resident over the age of seventy years Free"
- 5. Paragraph (b) of subsection one of section eight of the Section 8 said Ordinance is amended by striking out the words "one caribou and one grizzly bear" where they appear at the end thereof and substituting therefor the following: "One caribou, one grizzly bear, and either one black bear or one brown bear"

- Subsection one of section nine A of the said Ordinance. 6. as enacted by section five, chapter thirteen of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), is hereby repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - (1) Every guide in charge of a hunting party shall Duties of observe and comply with the following duties and requirements:

- (a) He shall, on his return from a big game hunting trip with a party for which he has been engaged as a guide, make a return in writing on a form prescribed by the Commissioner giving:
 - (i) particulars concerning the district in which the trip was undertaken;
 - (ii) the name, address and licence number of each member of the party;
 - (iii) the place of departure and return;
 - (iv) the method of transportation employed;

- (v) particulars of each species of game killed or taken by each member of the party; and
- (vi) particulars of any violations of this Ordinance by any member of the party.
- (b) He shall, if he can do so without using force, prevent any person, for whom he is acting as a guide, from hunting or killing any game in excess of the bag limit set out in this Ordinance or Regulations made hereunder;
- (c) He shall not, while he is guiding a person or party engaged in big game hunting, kill, take or catch any game."
- 7. Subsection one of section nineteen of the said Ordinance is repealed and the following substituted therefor:

Expiration date of

"19 (1) All non-resident big game and bird licences shall expire on the thirtieth day of November in each year, and all other licences issued under the provisions of this Ordinance shall expire on the thirtieth day of June next following the year of issue of such licences."

Section 63 repealed 8. Section sixty-three of the said Ordinance is hereby repealed.

Serving of game prohibited in restaurants,

- 9. Subsection two of section sixty-four of the said Ordinance is repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - "(2) No game, game birds or parts thereof as set forth in paragraphs (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i) of subsection two of section four of this Ordinance shall be served for food at any hotel, restaurant, public dining room, school, mission school, hostel, hospital, camp, dining room of a mining location or other commercial or industrial establishment,

with a meal for which a charge is made whether directly or indirectly:

- (3) Subsection two does not apply to the missions in Exemption the settlements of Old Crow and Ross River."
- The said Ordinance is further amended by inserting Removal or 10. immediately after section sixty-six the following section: of signs

- "66A Any person who wilfully removes or defaces any notice, poster or sign erected pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance shall be guilty of an offence, and shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine of not less than twenty-five dollars and costs nor more than one hundred dollars and costs or to imprisonment of not less than fourteen days in gaol nor more than one month in gaol."
- Section seventy-four of the said Ordinance is amended Section 74 11. by striking out the word "mile" where the same appears in subsection two thereof and substituting therefor the words" hundred yards".

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

"AN ORDINANCE EMPOWERING THE COMMISSIONER OF THE YUKON TERRITORY TO GRANT A FRANCHISE TO MAYO UTILITIES LIMITED FOR THE OPERATING OF A TELEPHONE SYSTEM IN THE MAYO AREA, Y.T.

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

Section 1

1. "An Ordinance Empowering the Commissioner of the Yukon Territory to Grant a Franchise to Mayo Utilities Limited for the Operation of a Telephone System in the Mayo Area, Y.T.", being chapter six of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), is hereby amended by adding immediately at the end of section one the following words:

"Provided an arbitration clause for the settlement of any dispute is included therein."

Section 2 amended

2. Section two of the said Ordinance is amended by adding immediately at the end thereof the following words:

"with a renewal option for a further ten years."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
"AN ORDINANCE GRANTING PERMISSION TO THE
YUKON BREWERY (HOLDING) COMPANY LIMITED
TO MANUFACTURE, COMPOUND AND MAKE
INTOXICATING LIQUORS"

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- Section two of "An Ordinance Granting Permission to the Yukon Brewery (Holding) Company Limited to Manufacture, Compound and Make Intoxicating Liquors" being chapter fourteen of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is hereby repealed and the following section is substituted therefor:
 - "2. The fee for such permission shall be two hundred Fee and fifty dollars for the first year, and the same amount for each succeeding year."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO RATIFY THE TAX RENTAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENT OF
CANADA AND THE GOVERNMENT OF THE
YUKON TERRITORY

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

Ratification

- 1. The Tax Rental Agreement between the Government of Canada and the Government of the Yukon Territory, made the twenty-sixth day of March, 1953, and signed by the Minister of Finance and the Commissioner of the Yukon Territory is hereby ratified and confirmed.
- Coming into 2. This Ordinance shall be deemed to have come into force on the twenty-sixth day of March, A.D. 1953.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO INCORPORATE THE CHILDREN'S AID SOCIETY OF SOUTHERN YUKON

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

WHEREAS pursuant to section twenty-one, subsection one of the Protection of Children Ordinance, being chapter six of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1945, any ten or more persons who desire to associate themselves together for the purpose of protecting children from cruelty, ameliorating family conditions that lead to neglect of children and caring for and protecting children in need of protection, may make application to the Commissioner in Council; and

WHEREAS application for incorporation has been made in the form prescribed by the provisions of the said Ordinance; and

WHEREAS it is expedient to grant this request;

THEREFORE, the Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

Charles Roderick MacNevin, Frederick Dore Locke, Body Sylvia Jean MacNevin, Geneva Jensen, Alma Hamilton, Doris Gentleman, Almas David Vars, Florence Gertrude Vars, Marporie Ethel Locke, and Harold Kelba, all of the City of Whitehorse in Yukon Territory, constitute a body corporate under the name of "The Children's Aid Society of Southern Yukon."

The business and objects of the Society shall be the Objects of 2. protection of children from cruelty, the amelioration

24 CHILDREN'S AID SOCIETY ORDINANCE

of family conditions that lead to neglect of children, the care and protection of children in need of protection, and the enforcement by all lawful means of the laws relating thereto.

Jurisdiction

3. The jurisdiction of the Society shall be limited to all that portion of Yukon Territory lying to the south of the sixty-third parallel of north latitude.

Subject to protection of Children Ordinance

4. The corporation shall at all times be subject to and governed by the provisions of the Protection of Children Ordinance.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (First Session)

AN ORDINANCE FOR GRANTING TO THE
COMMISSIONER CERTAIN SUMS OF MONEY TO
DEFRAY THE EXPENSES OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
OF THE TERRITORY

(Assented to April 21, 1953.)

WHEREAS, it appears by message from Wilfrid George Brown, Esquire, Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, and in the estimates accompanying the same, that the sums hereinafter mentioned in Schedules "A" and "B" to this Ordinance are required to defray certain expenses of the Public Service of the Yukon Territory and for the purposes relating thereto, for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954.

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- 1. From and out of the sums at the disposal of the Yukon Council there shall be paid and applied a further sum not exceeding in the whole two million four hundred and ninety-eight thousand one hundred and two dollars for defraying the several charges and expenses of the Public Services of the Yukon Territory and for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954, as set forth in Schedules "A" and "B" of this Ordinance.
- 2. The due application of all monies expended shall be duly accounted for.

SCHEDULE "A"

Sums granted to the Commissioner by the Ordinance for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954, and the purposes for which they are granted.

Vote No

No.			
1.	Legislative		
	Salaries\$	700.00	
	Travelling Expenses	2,175.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	225.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	50.00	
	Publication of Reports, etc.	4,000.00	
	Advertising	100.00	
	Office Stationery, Supplies,		
	etc	350.00	
	Sundries	300.00	
	Sessional Indemnities	6,000.00	\$ 13,900.00
2	——————————————————————————————————————		
2.	Territorial Treasurer		
	Salaries\$	•	
	Travelling Expenses	500.00	
	Removal Expense	600.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	400.00	
	Postage	<i>7</i> 50.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	125.00	
	Publication of Reports, etc. Office Stationery, Supplies,	600.00	
	etc	7 ,000.00	
	Public Utilities Services	300.00	
	Sundries	100.00	
	Holiday Pay	600.00	
	Employees Superannuation		
	Fund	550.00	
	Unemployment Insurance	240.00	43,515.00
3.	Department of Education		
J.	-	172 200 00	
	Salaries\$	173,300.00	
	Professional & Special	150.00	
	Services	150.00	

Travelling Expense	<i>7</i> 00.00	
Removal Expense	2,150.00	
Freight, Express & Cartage	1,800.00	
Postage	100.00	
Telephone & Telegraph	350.00	
Films, Displays, Broadcasts,		
Advertising, etc	1,000.00	
Office Stationery, Supplies,		
Equipment, Furnishings	· 300.00	
Materials & Supplies	1,975.00	
Public Utility Service	•	
(Light, Water &		
Scavenger)	7,500.00	
Repairs and Upkeep of	,	
Buildings & Works	4,000.00	
Repairs and Upkeep	,	
of Equipment	1,200.00	
Acquisition or Construction	,	
of Equipment	2,950.00	
Rentals of Land, Buildings	,	
and Works	130.00	
Rental of Equipment	1,500.00	
Sundries	7 50.00	
Fuel	18,500.00	
Unemployment & Super-	,	
annuation Insurance	400.00	
Classroom Supplies	5,000.00	
Grants	20,500.00	244,255.00
•		
Territorial Secretary		
Salaries	\$ 33,675.00	
Travelling Expense	1,000.00	
Removal Expense	200.00	
Freight, Express & Cartage	250.00	
Postage	425.00	
Telephone & Telegraph	225.00	
Films, Displays, Broadcasts,		
Advertising, etc	200.00	
Office Stationery, Supplies,		
Equipment &		
Furnishings	890.00	

3

4.

	Materials & Supplies Public Utility Service (Light, Water &	500.00	
	Scavenger)Repairs & Upkeep of	2,140.00	
	Equipment	600.00	
	Rentals of Equipment	850.00	
	Sundries	100.00	
	Grants	200.00	
	Fuel	1,500.00	
	Unemployment Insurance	100.00	
	Superannuation Fund	72 0.00	
	Holiday Pay	250.00	43,825.00
5.	Health & Public Welfare		
٠.	Salaries & Wages\$	19,500,00	
	Professional and Special	1,000.00	
	Services	8,925.00	
	Travelling Expense	2,750.00	
	Removal Expense	250.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	225.00	
	Postage	75.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	320.00	
	Films, Displays, Broadcasts,	020.00	
	Advertising, etc.	100.00	
	Office Stationery, Supplies,	100.00	
	Equipment &		
	Furnishings	350.00	
	Materials & Supplies	800.00	
	Públic Utility Service	000.00	
	(Light, Water and		
	Scavenger)	825.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of	020.00	
	Equipment	1,375.00	
	Acquisition or Construction	1,07 5.00	
	of Equipment	500.00	
	Rentals of Land, Buildings	000.00	
	& Works	700.00	
	Sundries	300.00	
		000.00	

	Hospital Grants	69,000.00	
	Hospitalization—		
	Mental Patients Hospitalization—	19,250.00	
	Aged & Partial Indigent Hospitalization—	27,000.00	
	T. B. Patients	35,060.00	
	Child Welfare	20,000.00	
	Fuel	3,100.00	
	Clothing	1,000.00	
	Subsistence	10,160.00	
	Pensions — Aged & Blind	22,360.00	243,925.00
6.	Municipal Administration		
	Statutory Grants	5,250.00	
	Special Grants	39,586.00	
	Welfare Grants	28,350.00	7 3,186.00
	Wenare Granes	20,550.00	75,160.00
7.	Game		
• •		0.400.00	
	Salaries and Wages\$		
	Travelling Expense	3,000.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	50.00	
	Postage	125.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	100.00	
	etc	500.00	
	Office Stationery, Supplies, Equipment &		
	Furnishings	900.00	
	Material & Supplies	75.00	
	Light, Water & Scavenger	180.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of	200.00	
	Buildings & Works	450.00	
	Rentals of Equipment	50.00	
	Sundries	100.00	
	Preservation of Game	2,500.00	
	Unemployment Insurance	70.00	16,500.00
	-		

8.	General		
	Sundries\$	1,000.00	
	Property Insurance	4,000.00	
	Reserve for Compensation	·	
	Protection	5,000.00	10,000.00
9.	Roads, Bridges & Public Work		
	Salaries and Wages\$	164.750.00	
	Travelling Expense	4,850.00	
	Removal Expense	1,200.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	6,000.00	
	Postage	100.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	550.00	
	Films, Displays, Broadcasts		
	and other informational		
	material	100.00	
	Office Stationery, Supplies,		
	Equipment &		
	Furnishings	900.00	
	Materials & Supplies	23,000.00	
	Light, Water & Scavenger	1,550.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of		
	Buildings & Works	1,700.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of		
	Equipment	10,855.00	
	Acquisition or Construction,		
	Land, Buildings and		
	Works	500.00	
	Rentals of Equipment		
	Miscellaneous	1,250.00	
	Holiday Pay	2,77 6.00	
	Contract Labour	10,000.00	
	Fuel	5,200.00	
	Subsistence	7,500.00	
	Unemployment Insurance	1,625.00	388,731.00
10.	Capital Account		
	Construction — Stewart		
	Crossing — Dawson		
	Highway\$	250,000.00	

	Construction — Carcross		
	School	18,000.00	
	Heating Plant-Whitehorse		
		50,000.00	
	Construction — Watson		
	Lake School	25,000.00	
	Carmacks Buildings	1,500.00	344,500.00
11.	Liquor Account		
	Salaries and Wages\$	43,820.00	
	Travelling Expense	252.00	
	Freight, Express & Cartage	5,300.00	
	Postage	215.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	359.00	
	Office Stationery, Supplies,		
	Equipment &		
	& Furnishings	525.00	
	Material & Supplies9	•	
	Light, Water & Scavenger	1,519.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of		
	Buildings & Works	300.00	
	Repairs & Upkeep of		
	Equipment	125.00	
	Sundries	97.00	
	Insurance on Merchandise	5, 7 00.00	
	Unemployment Insurance	350.00	
	Fuel	5,07 5.00	
	Bank Charges &	•	
	Locker Fees	1,350.00	\$ 1,056,365.00
Į			\$ 2,478,402.00

SCHEDULE "B"

Sums granted to the Commissioner by the Ordinance for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954, and the purposes for which they are granted.

Vote No.

No.				
3.	Education			
	Repairs and Upkeep of			
	Equipment\$	1,200.00		
	Acquisition of Equipment	1,000.00	\$	2,200.00
6.	Municipal Administration			
	Upkeep of Buildings			
	& Works\$	800.00		
	Grants	5,000.00		5,800.00
9.	Roads, Bridges & Public Works			
	Salaries\$	1,200.00		
	Repairs and Upkeep	,		
	of Buildings	3,800.00		
	Rental of Equipment	2,500.00		
	Fuel	1,000.00		8,500.00
10.	Capital Account			
	Whitehorse Public School\$	3,200.00	\$	3,200.00
			\$	19,700.00
			_	

ORDINANCES

OF THE

YUKON TERRITORY

PASSED BY THE

YUKON COUNCIL

IN THE YEAR

1953

SECOND SESSION

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (Second Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE

"MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE"

(Assented to May 30th, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

1. The "Municipal Ordinance" being chapter eight of the Subsection Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1949 (second session) Section 172 amended as amended by chapter six of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1953 (first session) is hereby amended by inserting at the beginning of subsection sixty-seven A of section one hundred and seventy-two the following words:

"with the approval of the Commissioner and"

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (Second Session)

AN ORDINANCE FOR

GRANTING TO THE COMMISSIONER CERTAIN SUMS OF MONEY TO DEFRAY THE EXPENSES OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE OF THE TERRITORY

(Assented to May 30th, 1953.)

WHEREAS, it appears by message from Wilfrid George Brown, Esquire, Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, and in the estimates accompanying the same, that the sums hereinafter mentioned in Schedule "A" to this Ordinance are required to defray certain expenses of the Public Service of the Yukon Territory and for the purposes relating thereto, for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954.

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- 1. From and out of the sums at the disposal of the Yukon Council there shall be paid and applied a further sum not exceeding in the whole eighty thousand eight hundred and forty dollars for defraying the several charges and expenses of the Public Services of the Yukon Territory and for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954, as set forth in Schedule "A" of this Ordinance.
- 2. The due application of all monies expended shall be duly accounted for.

SCHEDULE "A"

Sums granted to the Commissioner by the Ordinance for the twelve months ending March 31st, 1954, and the purposes for which they are granted.

Vote No.

1.	Legislative Travelling Expenses\$ Sessional Indemnities	340.00 500.00	\$	840.00
8.	General Sundries			1,000.00
9.	Roads, Bridges & Public Works Salaries Rental of Equipment	1,200.00 2,800.00		4,000.00
10.	Capital Account Construction— Elsa-Mayo Highway Acquisition — Road Equipment	10,000.00 65,000.00	7	75,000.00
	_		\$ 8	30,840.00

ORDINANCES

OF THE

YUKON TERRITORY

PASSED BY THE

YUKON COUNCIL

IN THE YEAR

1953

THIRD SESSION

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY

1953 (Third Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "MOTOR VEHICLES ORDINANCE"

(Assented to November 2, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

1. (1) Section eighty-four of the "Motor Vehicles Ordin-Commissioner's power ance", being chapter eight of the Ordinances of the to make Yukon Territory, 1952 (first session), is amended by regulations for traffic striking out the word "and" where it appears at the end of paragraph (h).

- (2) Section eighty-four of the said Ordinance is further amended by striking out paragraph (i) and substituting therefor the following paragraphs:
 - "(i) prescribing generally for the control of, or the restriction or prohibition of the erection, display, style, size, colour, material and number of any signs, signboards, markers or notices erected by any person in the vicinity of or on any highway.
 - (j) respecting
 - (1) the closing of a highway or part thereof, OL
 - (11) the restriction of traffic, including the type, weight of load and speed of vehicles on a highway or part thereof,

42 Motor Vehicles Ordinance

Whenever, and for such period of time as he deems necessary to prevent serious damage to a highway or to ensure the safety of persons using a highway; and

(k) generally, for carrying out the purposes and provisions of this Ordinance.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (Third Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE "WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION ORDINANCE"

(Assented to November 2, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- 1. Paragraph (u) of section two of the Workmen's Compensation Ordinance, being chapter twelve of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1952 (second session), is repealed and the following substituted therefor:
 - "(u) "payroll" means the total remuneration earned by Definition of payroll all workmen of an employer in the Yukon Territory in a year, less the total remuneration in excess of \$250.00 paid to each workman for each month in that year;"

2. Section one of this Ordinance shall be deemed to have come into force on the first day of January, 1953.

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (Third Session)

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE

(Assented to November 2, 1953.)

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

1. The "Municipal Ordinance", being chapter eight of the Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, 1949 (second session), is hereby amended by repealing section 194 and substituting therefore the following:

Fiscal year

- "194 (1) Subject to subsection two, the financial year of the municipality shall end on the 31st day of March and all accounts of the moneys received and disbursed by the municipality for the year shall be made up by the municipal treasurer and submitted to the auditor not later than one week after the end of the financial year.
 - (2) Notwithstanding subsection one, a municipality shall, subject to the prior approval of the Commissioner, have the power to make a by-law changing the date of its financial year from the 31st day of December."

ORDINANCES OF YUKON TERRITORY 1953 (Third Session)

AN ORDINANCE FOR GRANTING TO THE
COMMISSIONER CERTAIN SUMS OF MONEY TO
DEFRAY THE EXPENSES OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE
OF THE TERRITORY

(Assented to November 2, 1953.)

WHEREAS, it appears by message from Wilfrid George Brown, Esquire, Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, and in the estimates accompanying the same, that the sums hereinafter mentioned in Schedule "A" to this Ordinance are required to defray certain expenses of the Public Service of the Yukon Territory and for the purposes relating thereto, for the twelve months ending March 31, 1954.

The Commissioner of the Yukon Territory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the said Territory, enacts as follows:

- 1. From and out of the sums at the disposal of the Yukon Council there shall be paid and applied a further sum not exceeding in the whole two hundred and fifty-nine thousand five hundred and thirty-three dollars and thirty cents for defraying the several charges and expenses of the Public Services of the Yukon Territory and for the twelve months ending March 31, 1954, as set forth in Schedule "A" of this Ordinance.
- 2. The due application of all monies expended shall be duly accounted for.

GOVERNMENT OF THE YUKON TERRITORY SCHEDULE "A"

Sums granted to the Commissioner by the Ordinance for the twelve months ending March 31, 1954, and the purpose for which they are granted.

Vo	ote
N	ο.

1.	Legislative		
	Sessional Indemnities\$	4,400.00	\$ 4,400.00
3.	Education		
	Travelling Expense	300.00	
	Telephone & Telegraph	134.00	
	Public Utility Service	2,110.00	
	Repairs and Upkeep of		
	Buildings	7,570.00	
	Rental of Equipment	1,500.00	
	Fuel	2,340.00	
	Classroom Supplies	750.00	
	Grants	1,500.00	16,204.00
5.	Health and Public Welfare		
	Salaries and Wages\$	900.00	
	Acquisition of Equipment	950.00	
	Polio — Control — Treatment	90,000.00	91,850.00
8.	General		
	Sundries \$	3,000.00	3,000.00
9.	Roads, Bridges & Public Works		
	Salaries and Wages	6,400.00	
	Public Utility Service	300.00	
	Repairs and Upkeep		
	of Equipment	300.00	
	Rental of Equipment	15,000.00	
	Fuel	5,000.00	
	Contract Labor	3,500.00	
	Whitehorse - Mayo Highway	28,129,30	58,629.30

10. Capital Account

Construction—		
Stewart Crossing —		
Dawson Road\$	32,000.00	
Carcross School	2,300.00	
Corkery Creek Bridge	15,000.00	
Heating Plant — Whitehorse		
General Hospital	12,200.00	
Public Buildings and		
Furnishings—		
Dawson School	4,000.00	
Teachers Residence - Mayo	<i>7</i> ,800.00	
Venders Residence - Mayo	6,000.00	
Whitehorse School	6,150.00	85,450.00
_		\$259,533.30

INDEX 49

INDEX

TO

ORDINANCES OF 1953

(FIRST SESSION)

	Section	Page
APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE (Chapter 15)		25
AN ORDINANCE TO EMPOWER THE COMMISSIO TO AUTHORIZE THE DEPARTMENT OF NAT AL REVENUE TO DELETE FROM ITS ACCOUNTIES DUE AND OWING TO CERTAIN PERS	NER ION- INTS	
(Chapter 4)		4
List of accounts	1	4
AN ORDINANCE TO INCORPORATE THE CHILDR		
AID SOCIETY OF SOUTHERN YUKON (Chapte		22
Constitution as body corporate	1	22
Objects	_	22
Jurisdiction		23
Subject to Protection of Children Ordinance	4	23
YUKON GAME ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to amend the (Chapter 10)		16
Section 2 amended		16
Section 4 amended		16
Section 5 substituted		16
Section 6 amended		17
Section 8 amended		17 17
Section 9A substituted Subsection 1 section 19 substituted	-	17
Section 63 repealed		18
Subsection 2 section 64 substituted		18
Section 66A inserted		19
Section 74 amended		19
GASOLINE AND DIESEL OIL TAX ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 1)		1
Section 15 amended		î
		-
GOVERNMENT LIQUOR ORDINANCE An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 2)		2
Section 25 amended		2
	·	L
HOSPITALS ORDINANCE		-
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 5)		5 5
Coming into force	-	6
Coming into lorce		0

50 INDEX

	Section	Page
MAYO UTILITIES LIMITED TELEPHONE FRANCHISE ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 11)		20
Section 1 amended	1	20
Section 2 amended	2	20
MOTOR VEHICLES ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 7)		8
Section 12 amended		8
Section 13 substituted		8
Section 16 amended		9
Section 16A added		9
Section 19 amended	5	10
MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 6)		7
Subsection 67A section 172 added	1	7
AN ORDINANCE TO RATIFY THE TAX RE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GOVERNMEN CANADA AND THE GOVERNMENT OF	T OF THE	
YUKON TERRITORY (Chapter 13)		22
Rental Agreement ratified	1	22
Coming into force	2	22
STEAM BOILERS ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 8)		11
Section 8 amended	1	11
Section 20 amended	2	11
Section 35 substituted	3	12
WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 9)		13
Section 2 amended	1	13
Section 16 amended	2	13
Section 42 substituted	3	14
YUKON BREWERY (HOLDING) COMPANY LIM		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 12)	ا پدرستارین	21
Section 2 amended	1	21
THE YUKON TERRITORIAL PUBLIC SERVICE ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to Amend the (Chapter 3)		3
	1	2

51

	SECOND, SESSIO	\mathbf{N}	
		Section	Page
APPROPRIATION	ORDINANCE (Chapter 2)	36
MUNICIPAL ORDI	NANCE		
An Ordinance to	Amend the (Chapter 1)		35
Subsection 67A	section 172 amended	1	35
	THIRD SESSION	N	
APPROPRIATIONS	ORDINANCE (Chapter	4)	45
MOTOR VEHICLE	S ORDINANCE		
An Ordinance to	Amend the (Chapter 1)		41
Section 84 ame	nded	1	41
MUNICIPAL ORDI	NANCE		
An Ordinance to	Amend the (Chapter 3)		44
Section 194 sub	stituted	1	41
WORKMEN'S COM	IPENSATION ORDINANO	E	
An Ordinance to	Amend the (Chapter 2)	i	43
Section 2 amend	led	1	43